U.S. IOOS Advisory Committee
Virtual Public Meeting
Meeting Minutes
July 21 & 25, 2025

U.S. I00OS Advisory Committee Members Present:

Debra Hernandez, SECOORA, Chair

Eric Anderson, Colorado School of Mines

Daniel Costa, Institute of Marine Sciences, University of California Santa Cruz
Catherine Edwards, Skidaway Institute of Oceanography, University of Georgia
Glen Gawarkiewicz, Woods Hole Oceanographic Institute

Monty Graham, Smithsonian Environmental Research Center

Eoin Howlett, Trinnex

Barbara Kirkpatrick, GCOOS

Laura Lilly, Exponent

Julio Morell, Caribbean Coastal Ocean Observing System (CARICOOS)

Nick Rome, Center of Ocean Leadership

Steve Woll, Little Creek Applied Science

U.S. I00S Office Leadership and Staff in Attendance:
Krisa Arzayus (DFO), IOOS Office

Jeff Payne, IOOS Office

Courtney Edwards, IOOS Office

Laura Gewain, IOOS Office

July 21, 2025

Meeting Welcome and Goals

Krisa Arzayus, U.S. IOOS Advisory Committee Designated Federal Olfficer, and Deputy
Director, NOAA's U.S. 100S Office

Debra Hernandez, U.S. IOOS Advisory Committee Chair

K. Arzayus welcomed the Committee. She reviewed the meeting agenda and highlighted that ex-
officio member Deerin Babb-Brott has now retired. At this point, K. Yarincik from the IOOS
Association is the only active ex-officio member. K. Arzayus reminded members of the process
for making recommendations, posted on the Committee’s website here. D. Hernandez reviewed
the meeting objective, which is to discuss and agree upon work plan topics.

100S Office Update
Jeff Payne

J. Payne provided an update on recent budget and programmatic activities in the Integrated
Ocean Observing System (I0OOS) office. He reviewed work plan suggestions being put forward
by the IOOS office. His presentation can be found on the Committee’s website here and
additional notes about the IOOS office work plan suggestions can be found here.


https://cdn.ioos.noaa.gov/media/2025/07/Pathway-to-IOOS-AC-Recommendations.pdf
https://cdn.ioos.noaa.gov/media/2025/07/IOOS-Office-Update_21July2025_v2_reduced.pdf
https://cdn.ioos.noaa.gov/media/2025/07/IOOS-Office-Updates-Presentation_Talking-Points.pdf

G. Gawarkiewicz mentioned that the firing of probationary employees in Fisheries was a huge
loss to the community, and that recent actions taken have set back the potential to re-hire former
employees, which impacts the community.

E. Howlett asked about the priority level of the IOOS work plan suggestions. J. Payne clarified
that these are all opportunity areas, but not necessarily listed in order of importance: ocean
economy and data management and cyberinfrastructure (DMAC) are top priorities, external
review is a mid-level priority for later, and interagency coordination and collaboration may be a
challenge but should still be considered.

E. Howlett also connected the importance of DMAC and data buys and the importance of
artificial intelligence (Al) as priorities for moving forward. He mentioned that the National
Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) has done a great job laying out an Al
strategy. J. Payne agreed.

Work Plan Discussion
All Members

D. Hernandez reminded the committee about the Al and data buy presentations received in
recent Administrative calls. She recognized executive orders (EOs) as a way to filter what the
committee wants to move forward. Work plan ideas collected in preparation of the planned in-
person meeting from January (but never discussed due to meeting cancellation) can be found on
the Committee’s website here and links to relevant EOs can be found here.

N. Rome shared a proposal that would likely be directed towards the IOOC (link). He said that
Henry Ruhl from CenCOOS provided positive feedback regarding public/private partnerships. D.
Hernandez asked if a final product of the strategic plan would underpin improving efficiency in
integrating technology transfer efforts. N. Rome said this could end in a white paper or synthesis
document focused on one or a few regions to work with the Regional Associations (RAs) about
perspectives from industry and other sectors. He clarified that we do not have to take action on
this now, and that the proposal was developed when the landscape was different. D. Babb-Bratt
said the regions should have capacity and political visibility to go through this process.

D. Hernandez said various ideas need to be brought up, identifying near term priorities during
the next meeting.

B. Kirkpatrick asked if there is any work that is unfinished regarding enterprise excellence. C.
Edwards answered that what remains to be done will inform the current perspective. She added
that comprehensive research was compiled; however, a formal recommendation was not
finalized from research into actionable suggestions. E. Howlett agreed that the stakeholder
feedback should be summarized through a current lens and possibly generate a formal
recommendation, especially regarding selling ourselves better.

G. Gawarkiewicz followed up about promoting IOOS and discussed the importance of seafood
competitiveness as a helpful selling point, particularly regarding how IOOS observations
influence management processes.


https://cdn.ioos.noaa.gov/media/2025/07/Summary-of-Work-Plan-Ideas_numbered.pdf
https://cdn.ioos.noaa.gov/media/2025/07/IOOS-AC-EOs.pdf
https://cdn.ioos.noaa.gov/media/2025/07/Rome-Proposal-for-IOOS-FAC-Work-Plan.pdf

E. Howlett reminded the group about the Al presentation. He discussed that NOAA has a
thoughtful strategy about Al and concluded that the Committee may not have much to offer at
this time. S. Woll said that Al needs training datasets and IOOS could get more data in the field
for training Al especially since Al is tolerant of data of different quality. He also said there is a
need to understand the difference between the traditional IOOS model and how IOOS can
support Al moving forward.

S. Woll asked for an update about the Ocean Enterprise Accelerators, which he said are a great
tool for the community and should not be the only tool. E. Howlett connected the Accelerators to
DMAC and stated that some, but not all, tools are Al ready. S. Woll asked why DMAC is
national, not regional.

D. Costa stated that a recommendation from the Marine Life Working Group was a pan-I00S
centralized data management system. S. Woll replied that the weather side is thinking of similar
ideas and that ocean and atmosphere methodologies could be consolidated.

E. Howlett commented that it could be challenging for RAs to convert from their current model
to a data sell model. S. Woll asked how the RAs could convert current assets into data buys and
stated that all entities involved need to be on board. D. Hernandez proposed generating a white

paper including barriers and opportunities to the two models.

S. Woll proposed to have an independent agency run observing system simulation experiments
(OSSEs) to determine the impact of data prior to selling it and make progress in data
standardization. Additionally, certifying specifications on oceanographic instruments would
increase trust, reducing redundancies in sensor performance. D. Hernandez noted synergies
between these and N. Rome’s proposal, as well as cost challenges and asked what question do
we want answered with these experiments.

L. Lilly was interested in an update on the blue economy, noting that would help to address
relevant EOs. She also stated that there have been recent lawsuits related to coastal resilience and
adaptation, and asked what more needs to be done to address this.

D. Hernandez suggested capturing ideas from the discussion, asking people what they’d be
willing to spend time on. K. Arzayus suggested creating a list for the next meeting on
Wednesday, which could be a working session to actively iterate on these topics, especially
where additional briefings will be relevant. S. Woll suggested that everyone could have 5 votes
to see where patterns are, but noted that the different levels of granularity could pose a challenge.

Public Comment
Krisa Arzayus and Debra Hernandez

K. Arzayus opened the floor for public comment.
E. LaBrecque from the Marine Mammal Commission (MMC) asked for clarification about data

buys. S. Woll answered that external groups gather data from their own assets and make the data
available for a fee. C. Edwards added that IOOS may be able to sell themselves as a data buy,



and that the RAs could provide data management and cyberinfrastructure efforts for private
groups to make data publicly available.

B. Kirkpatrick asked if we should address the data certification process in regards to Al. S. Woll
answered that certified assets could provide a reference network for other non-certified systems.

No written public comments were received.

Wrap Up and Next Steps
Krisa Arzayus and Debra Hernandez

D. Hernandez asked if there were terms of reference for the preparatory working groups. K.
Arzayus said this could be discussed in the working session on Wednesday, and that the
Committee would get a document where they should vote for their top 5 topics prior to the
discussion.

The meeting was adjourned.

July 23, 2025

Meeting Welcome
Krisa Arzayus, U.S. I00S Advisory Committee Designated Federal Officer, and Deputy
Director, NOAA's U.S. 100S Office

K. Arzayus welcomed everyone to day two of the Committee meeting.

Work Plan Discussion
All Members

D. Hernandez reminded the group that the goal is to identify no more than three topics for
preparatory working groups. Members had the opportunity to vote on proposed work plan topics
ahead of the meeting. D. Hernandez gave members an opportunity to ask clarifying questions
before discussing and finalizing the work plan topics.

D. Costa asked if there is a way to distinguish topics by identifying projects that will happen
regardless versus projects that will make the most impact. The group agreed this was a good
filter to assess the different topics.

E. Howlett noted that he voted for the Al project but he is unsure how much influence the
committee has over this topic as NOAA already has a mature Al strategy. Looking into what
I0O0S is already doing, or plans to do, would be a big lift. N. Rome thought an Al-focused
working group could bring a lot of value by exploring: (1) what Al-readiness means; (2) what
bringing Al into non-Al ready systems would entail; and (3) how the national IOOS Office and
RAs position themselves to optimize data availability for large language models for analysis.

M. Graham added that the group should consider work plan topics that align with the
Administration’s priorities. He highlighted that weather and weather forecasting is missing from



the list; these topics are the priority for science at NOAA. M. Graham and other members noted
that deep sea mining, Al, public-private partnerships (PPP), and data buys also align with
Administration priorities. S. Woll clarified that data buys could be a subset of PPP. He
recommended developing a list of baseline requirements presented by the Administration to
include in all subsequent discussions.

S. Woll added that complying with EOs are not action items, but rather tasking references and
guardrails by which the committee should operate. He emphasized that EOs do not belong on the
work plan list. He also noted that Al is a worthwhile topic and an Administration priority, but
does not agree with how the proposed Al workshop topic was written. He suggested modifying it
to read, “IOOS entities work to make data as Al-ready as much as possible.” After discussion, E.
Howlett agreed with this, and that EOs can be cited in the work plan recommendations to
indicate alignment with Administration priorities.

S. Woll also agreed that recommendations around the impact of the ocean on weather would
have greater impact, noting ocean data is very important to improve forecasts at further
timescales and would tie into Al.

N. Rome noted the testbed project could embed many aspects of the EOs. The committee could
talk eloquently about RA and IOOS efforts around scientific integrity, maritime dominance, and
seafood competitiveness, and highlighted that commercial data is already being explored. Deep
sea mining may be more of a challenge. He offered the example of seafood competitiveness,
which ties into an EO. Many RAs have fisheries products and large communities of stakeholders,
and a testbed could demonstrate how to optimize regional efforts.

C. Edwards observed that a lot of overlap exists between the topics. It is important to think about
how to address these overlaps and/or keep topics distinct. She noted that: (1) the New Blue
Economy (NBE), data buys, and PPP topics could be grouped; and (2) data buys could inform a
regional testbed, but data buys are not the main point of a testbed.

C. Edwards also emphasized the connections between the EOs and weather, highlighting that
IOOS could be much better at promoting the many ways their data is applied to different
sections. There is a lack of public relations within the IOOs Enterprise and for the ocean. How
can the committee help the IOOS Office with this? She also noted it is important for the
committee to consider I0OS’ 20% reduction in staff. What can 100S realistically achieve with
the reduction in force? Are smaller white papers, either as part of these larger topics or as
complimentary products, potentially a useful thing to consider doing on narrower topics? L. Lilly
agreed with both of C. Edwards’ points. D. Hernandez thought it would be worthwhile for the
committee to draw a line between the EOs and IOOS Enterprise contributions.

S. Woll suggested grouping the topics into four categories and mapping the EOs across the
groupings. Those four categories were: Al-readiness, PPP, Regional/National Coordination, and
Blue Economy.

K. Arzayus asked the committee if they are considering time sensitive topics that would result in
developing recommendations within a year, or if the goal is longer term and would result in



developing recommendations in 2-3 years. She also clarified that, since the Interagency Ocean
Observation Committee’s (IOOC) work is currently paused, the main audience for the
Committee’s recommendations are the NOAA Administrator, and recommendation responses are
usually delegated to the IOOS Office Director.

Due to his previous experience, E. Howlett cautioned the group to be aware of how much work
developing these recommendations could take before deciding which working group topics are
finalized. K. Arzayus pointed the group to past Committee recommendations after S. Woll asked
for clarification and guidelines about what past working groups have provided (e.g., number of
pages, number of recommendations). K. Arzayus also noted that more recommendations take
IOOS longer to address due to resource limitations, so fewer recommendations may be
preferable.

D. Hernandez asked for volunteers to lead working groups, noting the need to scope efforts to
ensure the work is manageable given E. Howlett’s caution about how much effort these
recommendations may entail. E. Howlett thought there were too many categories to tackle. S.
Woll suggested removing the regional collaboration and blue economy topics from the list,
noting that the current Administration and potential incoming NOAA Administrator have
strongly signaled support for PPP’s and Al. S. Woll volunteered to lead the PPP working group,
but also noted that given his expertise with data buys it might be better to have a lead who is
more skeptical of this topic.

D. Hernandez asked if anyone objected to starting preparatory working groups focusing on PPPs
(including data buys and citizen science) and Al, as these two topics received the most votes, and
reminded the group that their term is three years long so they have time to continue to think,
develop, and refine their efforts. C. Edwards provided the perspective that the last term included
a session similar to this one that: (1) identified phase one topics that developed recommendations
in the first year, (2) phase two topics that developed recommendations in the second year. C.
Edwards suggested considering a similar approach. She also noted that New Blue Economy
(NBE) was a topic of much discussion in the previous term; given NBE’s focus on data, it could
be grouped with PPPs. After discussion, the group agreed that the committee may not want to
focus on NBE given that it was a priority of the previous NOAA Administrator. K. Arzayus
noted that the Committee’s 2023 NBE recommendations could be helpful if the committee
decides to pursue efforts around the traditional blue economy.

E. Anderson asked for clarification of what is meant by Al-ready IOOS data, how IOOS data is
not currently Al-ready, and also noted that making data Al-ready could be included with PPP.
He uses IOOS data in models that use Al so did not understand what is needed or why this is a
priority. S. Woll thought Al-ready data is the preparation of data before ingestion by an Al-
model; he sees companies receiving funding to make ocean and weather data Al-ready. E.
Howlett noted that, as a data scientist, E. Anderson has a pipeline to do the data engineering
piece needed for Al but cloud-optimized storage and data that is ready for Al-training is not
done with IOOS data sets, and IOOS data is in different silos and formats.

E. Howlett and S. Woll agreed that Al would likely touch on national DMAC topics. M. Graham
added that IOOS provides raw data all the way through to derived information, and decisions


https://ioos.noaa.gov/community/u-s-ioos-advisory-committee/u-s-ioos-advisory-committee-recommendations/
https://ioos.noaa.gov/community/u-s-ioos-advisory-committee/u-s-ioos-advisory-committee-recommendations/

have been made about where to serve data up at times that may not be conducive for an Al
environment. [OOS may need a cultural reset about what the IOOS community will serve if they
want the data to be assimilated by, or through, Al

D. Costa noted that the RAs all do data management differently; the only IOOS national data
system is the Animal Telemetry Network (ATN). The marine life working group previously
made a recommendation to harmonize IOOS’ data. Doing Al across the entire IOOS system
assumes that the data are equivalent or comparable and accessible in similar ways. A national
DMAC may mean that the data are collected similarly and made available in similar ways, or
accessible from a singular portal, otherwise each RA may have a unique, specialized Al system.
A pan-regional synthesis of data was previously suggested to accomplish with Inflation
Reduction Act (IRA) funding, which would have pulled together data across multiple RAs; this
is still a pragmatic solution to enable other things the committee may want to see done.

It was discussed that having the same structure, or fundamental set of measurements, across all
RA data would be helpful, even if all the data is not available from a single Application
Programming Interface (API). D. Hernandez was unclear why that suggestion was made, as she
thought the RAs had already implemented those solutions. D. Costa noted that a lot of progress
had been made across the RAs, and creating a national DMAC will help elucidate how far the
RAs have come, how comparable and interchangeable regional data are, and what progress still
needs to be made. K. Arazyus noted that, if this is a topic the committee wants to further explore,
a series of presentations and briefings about the national and regional data portals, and the
regional certification process, could be educational and ensure all members have a common
understanding of IOOS’ data.

E. Howlett thought exploring the relationship between commercial datasets and commercial
entities and the regions would be valuable, but noted that PPPs have a very specific meaning
(e.g., a very structured relationship or agreement between public and governmental entities) that
he is not as interested in. He thought this topic should be focused on the commercialization of
data and the entity, rather than the relationship between I00S, the RAs, and commercial entities
(e.g., PPPs). It was discussed that the language could be softened to be along the lines of
‘collaborative innovation models,” ‘greater involvement of the private sector,” ‘speed-to-market
of development,” and/or ‘private sector collaboration.’

E. Howlett suggested titling the working group ‘private sector collaboration,” noting a sub-bullet
may include RAs developing additional funding streams. S. Woll seconded the motion to change
the working group title.

D. Hernandez summarized that: (1) members are coalescing around the phase one working
groups focusing on Al-ready data and private sector collaboration; (2) S. Woll volunteered to
lead the private sector collaboration working group; (3) and an initial goal is to have
recommendations to report-out during the next full Committee meeting around January 2026.
Members: (1) voted on and agreed to the phase one working group topics; (2) agreed to wait
until the end of phase one, or when a NOAA Administrator is decided, to further discuss phase
two topics; and (3) volunteered to serve on the working groups. E. Howlett volunteered to lead
the Al working group.



S. Woll suggested guidance of a five-page letter with no more than 10 recommendations be
developed by the working groups to present to the full committee in January 2026. E. Howlett
and K. Arzayus thought that sounded like too much and suggested pairing back. E. Howlett
suggested a single, five-pager letter with approximately five recommendations from the entire
committee. The group discussed the timeline and process for gathering information, receiving
presentations, developing the recommendations, etc. Courtney Edwards from the IOOS office
will staff the working group meetings, and reach out to members unable to attend the meeting
about which working groups they may wish to serve on. As members were unclear how long it
may take to gather the necessary information and finalize the letter and recommendations, they
agreed not to finalize a timeline but: (1) have the working groups meet to scope the project and
decide what information, presentations, and subject matter experts they may need to hear from;
and (2) hold an administrative meeting in September or October 2025 for the working groups to
give an update on progress and decide on the timeline for finalizing the materials.

Public Comment
There were no public comments.

Wrap Up and Next Steps
A Doodle poll will be sent out to schedule the administrative meeting in September/October
2025.

Courtney Edwards will work with members to schedule and facilitate preparatory work meetings
and distribute the contact information of preparatory work group members.

K. Arzayus also noted that the House of Representatives mark report recommends funding
I00S’ regional observations line in FY26 at $56 million. IOOS’ current year of funding for this

line is $42.5 million.

Minutes Certification

’MNHML{

Debra Hernandez, Chair Date




	July 21, 2025
	July 23, 2025

